ECOLE POLYTECHNIQUE

CENTRE DE MATHÉMATIQUES APPLIQUÉES UMR CNRS 7641

91128 PALAISEAU CEDEX (FRANCE). Tél: 01 69 33 41 50. Fax: 01 69 33 30 11

http://www.cmap.polytechnique.fr/

Quasi Optimal Interface Conditions in Domain Decomposition Methods. Application to Problems with Extreme Contrasts in the Coefficients.

Frédéric Nataf

R.I. N^0 514

October 2003

Quasi Optimal Interface Conditions in Domain Decomposition Methods. Application to Problems with Extreme Contrasts in the Coefficients.

Frédéric Nataf*

October 17, 2003

Abstract

Interface conditions are crucial in domain decomposition methods and their design has been the subject of many works. We propose in this paper a novel approach where only one or two real parameters have to be chosen for the entire interface. The method relies on van der Sluis' result on a quasi optimal diagonal preconditioner for a symmetric positive definite matrix, see [35]. It is then possible to prove a similar quasi optimality theorem in the class of Robin interface conditions using only one real parameter for the entire interface. By adding a second real parameter and more general interface conditions, it is possible to take into account highly heterogeneous media. Numerical results are given.

*CNRS, UMR 7641, CMAP, Ecole Polytechnique, 91128 Palaiseau Cedex, France

Contents

1	Introduction	3
2	Setting of the semi-discrete problem	4
3	The substructured problem3.1Semi-continuous factorization3.2Spectra of the substructured problem	5 5 6
4	Quasi optimal Robin interface conditions	8
5	Two parameters interface condition	11
6	Numerical results	14
	6.1 Constant coefficients	16
	6.2 Rapidly varying coefficients	16
	6.3 Highly heterogeneous problems	17
	6.4 Different Subdomains	18
	6.5 Playing with the parameters in the interface conditions \ldots	20
7	Conclusion	23

1 Introduction

The classical Schwarz method is based on Dirichlet boundary conditions. Overlapping subdomains are necessary to ensure convergence. It has been proposed independently in [19] and [24] to use more general interface conditions in order to accelerate the convergence and to allow for non overlapping decomposition. In [19], exact absorbing conditions are used in domain decomposition methods. They are optimal in terms of iteration counts [30] but are practically very difficult to compute or even use. In [24], Robin interface conditions are proposed. These seminal papers have been the basis for many other works: [8], [9], [7], [3], [4], [5], [6] or [15] for Helmholtz and Maxwell problems. The idea to design the interface conditions by solving an optimization problem related to the convergence rate of the domain decomposition method was apparently first raised in [33]. This optimization proved to be difficult. By using the relation between interface conditions in DDM and exact absorbing boundary conditions, the optimization becomes tractable and has been the subject of many works: see e.g. [21], [38], [11], [1], [25], [14], [2] or [13]. Such transmission conditions are essential for evolution equations [12] and for systems of equations, for the Euler equations, see [10].

The approach in these papers consist in choosing a frozen coefficients approach either at the continuous level and then discretized (see e.g. [15], [13], [29]), or at the discrete level (see e.g. or [16]). See also [34] and [25], [31] for other approaches. In any case, parameters have to be computed at each interface node.

We propose in this paper to use a novel approach where only one or two real parameters have to be chosen for the entire interface. The method relies on van der Sluis' result on a quasi optimal diagonal preconditioner for a symmetric positive definite matrix, see [35]. It is then possible to prove a similar quasi optimality theorem in the class of Robin interface conditions using only one real parameter for the entire interface, see Theorem 4.1. By adding a second real parameter and more general interface conditions (similar to the optimized of order two interface conditions [21], [1]), it is possible to take into account highly heterogeneous media.

More precisely, in § 2 we define the semi-discrete model problem under study. In § 3 we substructure the domain decomposition method. In § 4 we give the quasi optimality result. In § 5, we optimize a two parameter family of interface conditions. In § 6 we show numerical results and we conclude in § 7.

$\mathbf{2}$ Setting of the semi-discrete problem

We consider a model problem set in an infinite tube $\Omega = \mathbb{R} \times \omega$ where ω is some bounded open set of \mathbb{R}^p for some $p \geq 1$. A point in Ω will be denoted by (x, \mathbf{y}) . Let

$$\mathcal{L} := -\frac{\partial}{\partial x} c(\mathbf{y}) \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \mathcal{B}(\mathbf{y}) \tag{1}$$

where c is a positive real valued function and \mathcal{B} is a symmetric positive definite operator independent of the variable x. For instance, if p = 2 one might think of

$$\mathcal{B} := \eta(y, z) - \left(\frac{\partial}{\partial y}\kappa_y(y, z)\frac{\partial}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial}{\partial z}\kappa_z(y, z)\frac{\partial}{\partial z}\right)$$
(2)

with homogeneous Dirichlet boundary conditions and $\eta \geq 0, c, \kappa_u, \kappa_z > 0$ are given real-valued functions and $(y, z) \in \omega$. to solve the followir oblemWe

$$\mathcal{L}(u) = f \text{ in } \Omega$$
$$u = 0 \text{ on } \partial \Omega$$

by a domain decomposition method. The domain is decomposed into two non overlapping half tubes $\Omega_1 = (-\infty, 0) \times \omega$ and $\Omega_2 = (0, \infty) \times \omega$. The problem can be considered at the continuous level and then discretized (see e.g. [15], [13], [29]), or at the discrete level (see e.g. [25], [31] or [16]). We choose here a semi-discrete approach where only the tangential directions to the interface x = 0 are discretized whereas the normal direction x is kept continuous.

We therefore consider a discretization in the tangential directions which leads to

$$\mathcal{L}_h := -\frac{\partial}{\partial x} C \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + B \tag{3}$$

where B and C are symmetric positive matrices of order n where n is the number of discretization points of the open set $\omega \subset \mathbb{R}^p$. For instance if we take \mathcal{B} to be defined as in (2), B may be obtained via a finite volume or finite element discretization of (2) on a given mesh or triangulation of $\omega \subset \mathbb{R}^2$.

We consider a domain decomposition method based on arbitrary interface conditions Q_1 and Q_2 . The corresponding additive Schwarz method (ASM) reads:

$$\mathcal{L}_{h}(u_{1}^{n+1}) = f \quad \text{in} \quad \Omega_{1} \qquad \qquad \mathcal{L}_{h}(u_{2}^{n+1}) = f \quad \text{in} \quad \Omega_{2} \\
\mathcal{Q}_{1}(u_{1}^{n+1}) = \mathcal{Q}_{1}(u_{2}^{n}) \quad \text{on} \quad \Gamma \qquad \qquad \mathcal{Q}_{2}(u_{2}^{n+1}) = \mathcal{Q}_{2}(u_{1}^{n}) \quad \text{on} \quad \Gamma \qquad (4)$$

where Γ is the interface x = 0. It is possible to both increase the robustness of the method and its convergence speed by replacing the above fixed point iterative solver by a Krylov type method. This is made possible by substructuring the algorithm in terms of interface unknowns

$$H_1 = Q_1(u_2)(0, .)$$
 and $H_2 = Q_2(u_1)(0, .)$

Let us define the operator

$$\mathbf{T}: H_1, H_2, f \longrightarrow (\mathcal{Q}_2(v_1) \ \mathcal{Q}_1(v_2))^T$$

where v_i , i = 1, 2 solves

$$\begin{aligned}
\mathcal{L}_h(v_i) &= f \quad \text{in} \quad \Omega_i \\
\mathcal{Q}_i(v_i) &= H_i \quad \text{on} \quad \Gamma
\end{aligned} \tag{5}$$

The substructured problem is obtained by matching the interface conditions on the interface and reads

$$\begin{pmatrix} H_1 \\ H_2 \end{pmatrix} - \mathbf{\Pi} T(H_1, H_2, 0) = \mathbf{\Pi} T(0, 0, f)$$
(6)

where Π is the swap operator on the interfaces:

$$\mathbf{\Pi}((H_1 H_2)^T) = (H_2 H_1)^T$$

or in block matrix form

$$\mathbf{\Pi} = \left(\begin{array}{cc} 0 & 1\\ 1 & 0 \end{array}\right)$$

3 The substructured problem

The convergence rate of (4) and the spectra of (6) depend on the choice of the interface conditions $Q_{1,2}$. In order to design an efficient method, we need to have a formula for the substructured problem and so first for the solution to (5) with f = 0. An essential tool will the Dirichlet to Neumann map whose symbol is obtained here via a factorization of the operator \mathcal{L}_h .

3.1 Semi-continuous factorization

The factorization can be sought in this form where Λ is a SPD matrix of order n.

$$\begin{aligned} \mathcal{L}_{h} &= (-\frac{\partial}{\partial x}C. + \Lambda)C^{-1}(C\frac{\partial}{\partial x}. + \Lambda) \\ &= -\frac{\partial}{\partial x}C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} - \frac{\partial}{\partial x}\Lambda + \Lambda\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda C^{-1}\Lambda \\ &= -\frac{\partial}{\partial x}C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda C^{-1}\Lambda \end{aligned}$$

It is thus necessary to have

$$\Lambda C^{-1}\Lambda = B$$

This equation can be solved easily in the form

$$C^{-1/2}\Lambda C^{-1/2}C^{-1/2}\Lambda C^{-1/2} = C^{-1/2}BC^{-1/2}$$

We have thus

$$\Lambda = C^{1/2} (C^{-1/2} B C^{-1/2})^{1/2} C^{1/2}$$

so that

$$\Lambda = C^{1/2} A^{1/2} C^{1/2}$$

where

$$A := C^{-1/2} B C^{-1/2} \tag{7}$$

Finally, we have the double equality

$$\mathcal{L}_{h} = \left(-\frac{\partial}{\partial x}C. + \Lambda\right)C^{-1}\left(C\frac{\partial}{\partial x}. + \Lambda\right) = \left(\frac{\partial}{\partial x}C. + \Lambda\right)C^{-1}\left(-C\frac{\partial}{\partial x}. + \Lambda\right) \quad (8)$$

3.2 Spectra of the substructured problem

Taking

$$Q_1 = (C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda)$$
 and $Q_2 = (-C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda)$

leads to a convergence in two steps of (4), see [30] or [28]. This result is optimal in terms of iteration counts. But, the matrix Λ is a priori a full matrix of order *n* costly to compute and use. Instead, we will use approximations to it in terms of sparse matrices denoted Λ_{ap} . We substructure in terms of

$$\begin{pmatrix} H_1 \\ H_2 \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} (C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda_{ap})(u) \\ (-C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda_{ap})(u) \end{pmatrix}$$

We need to compute $\mathbf{T}(H_1, H_2, 0)$ for arbitrary vectors $H_1, H_2 \in \mathbb{R}^n$. From (8), the solution v_2 to problem (5) has the general following form

$$v_2 = exp(-\frac{1}{C}\Lambda x)(\alpha) + exp(\frac{1}{C}\Lambda x)(\beta)$$

for some $\alpha, \beta \in \mathbb{R}^n$. Since the solution has to be bounded as x goes to infinity, we have $\beta \equiv 0$. The boundary condition on Γ yields

$$(\Lambda + \Lambda_{ap})(\alpha) = H_2$$

so that

$$v_2 = exp(-\frac{1}{C}\Lambda x)(\Lambda + \Lambda_{ap})^{-1}(H_2)$$

It is then easy to check that the substructured problem (6) has the following form

$$\left(\mathbf{I} - \mathbf{\Pi}\mathbf{T}(.,.,0)\right) \begin{pmatrix} H_1 \\ H_2 \end{pmatrix} = G \tag{9}$$

where $\mathbf{T}(.,.,0)$ has the following expression

$$\mathbf{T}(.,.,0) = \begin{pmatrix} (\Lambda - \Lambda_{ap})(\Lambda + \Lambda_{ap})^{-1} & 0\\ 0 & (\Lambda - \Lambda_{ap})(\Lambda + \Lambda_{ap})^{-1} \end{pmatrix}$$

and

$$G = \mathbf{\Pi T}(0, 0, f)$$

We have a first result relating the spectra of the substructured problem to the convergence rate of the additive Schwarz method:

Lemma 3.1 We assume that Λ_{ap} is a SPD matrix of order n. Let $\rho(\Lambda_{ap})$ be the convergence rate of the Schwarz algorithm, i.e. $\rho_{Sc}(\Lambda_{ap}) = \max\{|\mu| \mid \mu \in Sp((\Lambda - \Lambda_{ap})(\Lambda + \Lambda_{ap})^{-1})\}.$ We have that

$$\rho_{Sc}(\Lambda_{ap}) < 1$$

Moreover, the matrix $Sub(\Lambda_{ap}) := \mathbf{I} - \mathbf{\Pi T}(.,.,0)$ has real eigenvalues in (0,2) symmetric w.r.t one and

$$\kappa(Sub(\Lambda_{ap})) = \frac{1 + \rho_{Sc}(\Lambda_{ap})}{1 - \rho_{Sc}(\Lambda_{ap})}$$

Proof It is then easy to check that any eigenvalue of $(\Lambda - \Lambda_{ap})(\Lambda + \Lambda_{ap})^{-1}$ is real and belongs to (-1, 1).

As for the second part of the proof, let (v, μ) be an eigenvector, eigenvalue of $(\Lambda - \Lambda_{ap})(\Lambda + \Lambda_{ap})^{-1}$, then

$$\left(\begin{array}{c} v\\ v\end{array}\right), 1-\mu$$

and

$$\left(\begin{array}{c}v\\-v\end{array}\right),1+\mu$$

are eigenmodes of $Sub(\Lambda_{ap})$. Let us notice that a very similar result may be found in [16].

Minimizing the condition number is thus equivalent to minimizing the convergence rate of the Schwarz algorithm.

We now give a partial optimality result:

Lemma 3.2 Let Λ_{ap} be a SPD matrix. Then,

$$\min_{\beta \in \mathbb{R}} \kappa(Sub(\beta \Lambda_{ap})) = \kappa(Sub(\beta_{opt}\Lambda_{ap})) = \kappa(\Lambda_{ap}^{-1}\Lambda)^{1/2}$$

where

$$\beta_{opt} = (\lambda_{min}(\Lambda_{ap}^{-1}\Lambda)\lambda_{max}(\Lambda_{ap}^{-1}\Lambda))^{1/2}$$

Proof We have

$$\rho_{Sc}(\beta\Lambda_{ap}) = \max_{\lambda \in Sp((\beta\Lambda_{ap})^{-1}\Lambda)} \left| \frac{1-\lambda}{1+\lambda} \right| = \max\left(\left| \frac{1-\lambda_{min}((\beta\Lambda_{ap})^{-1}\Lambda)}{1+\lambda_{min}((\beta\Lambda_{ap})^{-1}\Lambda)} \right|, \left| \frac{1-\lambda_{max}((\beta\Lambda_{ap})^{-1}\Lambda)}{1+\lambda_{max}((\beta\Lambda_{ap})^{-1}\Lambda)} \right| \right)$$

This expression is minimized by taking $\beta = \beta_{opt}$ as defined in Lemma 3.2. In that case, we get

$$\rho_{Sc}(\beta_{opt}\Lambda_{ap}) = \frac{1-\gamma}{1+\gamma}$$

where

$$\gamma := \sqrt{\lambda_{min}(\Lambda_{ap}^{-1}\Lambda)/\lambda_{max}(\Lambda_{ap}^{-1}\Lambda)} = \kappa(\Lambda_{ap}^{-1}\Lambda)^{-1/2}$$

Thus, we have (recalling that minimizing the convergence rate of the Schwarz method is equivalent to minimizing the condition number of the symmetrized substructured problem)

$$\min_{\beta \in \mathbb{R}} \kappa(Sub(\beta \Lambda_{ap})) = \kappa(Sub(\beta_{opt}\Lambda_{ap})) = 1/\gamma = \kappa(\Lambda_{ap}^{-1}\Lambda)^{1/2}$$

4 Quasi optimal Robin interface conditions

We consider the case where Λ_{ap} is a diagonal matrix. We prove a quasi optimality result for the following choice:

$$\Lambda_{ap}^{q-opt} := \beta_{opt0} \ C^{1/2} diag(A)^{1/2} C^{1/2}$$
(10)

where

$$\beta_{opt0} = (\lambda_{min}(diag(A)^{-1}A)\lambda_{Max}(diag(A)^{-1}A))^{1/4}.$$
(11)

More precisely, we have

Theorem 4.1

$$\min_{D \in \mathcal{D}} \kappa(Sub(D)) \le \kappa(Sub(\Lambda_{ap}^{q-opt}) \le m^{1/4} \cdot \min_{D \in \mathcal{D}} \kappa(Sub(D))$$

where $\mathcal{D} = \{ positive \ definite \ diagonal \ matrices \} \ and \ m \ is \ the \ maximum \ number \ of \ nonzeros \ in \ any \ row \ of \ A.$ Moreover,

$$\kappa(Sub(\Lambda_{ap}^{q-opt})) = \sqrt{\frac{\lambda_{Max}(diag(A)^{-1}A))^{1/2}}{\lambda_{min}(diag(A)^{-1}A))^{1/2}}}$$

As an example, for a standard finite volume discretization for a three dimensional problem m = 5 and $m^{1/4} = 1.49...$

The sequel of the section is devoted to the proof of the theorem. We first give a series of results of linear algebra. The basis for the proof is

Theorem 4.2 (van der Sluis) If F is SPD matrix, then $\min_{D \in \mathcal{D}} \kappa(D^{-1/2}FD^{-1/2}) \leq \kappa(diag(F)^{-1/2}Fdiag(F)^{-1/2}) \leq m \cdot \min_{D \in \mathcal{D}} \kappa(D^{-1/2}FD^{-1/2})$

where $\mathcal{D} = \{ \text{positive definite diagonal matrices} \}$ and m is the maximum number of nonzeros in any row of F.

see [35] and for further references [18].

Lemma 4.1 Let L be a non singular matrix with positive real eigenvalues, then L and $(L^T L)^{1/2}$ have the same extremal eigenvalues.

Proof We have using the symmetry of the matrix $L^T L$ and of its square root:

$$||L||^{2} = \sup_{x \neq 0} \frac{(Lx, Lx)}{(x, x)} = \sup_{x \neq 0} \frac{(L^{T} Lx, x)}{(x, x)}$$
$$= \sup_{x \neq 0} \frac{((L^{T} L)^{1/2} x, (L^{T} L)^{1/2} x)}{(x, x)} = ||(L^{T} L)^{1/2}||^{2}$$

Since we have : $||L^T|| = ||L||$, we also have

$$||L|| = ||L^T|| = ||(L^T L)^{1/2}|| = ||(L L^T)^{1/2}||$$

Therefore L and $(L^T L)^{1/2}$ have the same maximal eigenvalue. It is then easy to check that

$$||L^{-1}|| = ||L^{T-1}|| = ||(L^T L)^{-1/2}|| = ||(L L^T)^{-1/2}||$$

so that L and $(L^T L)^{1/2}$ have the same minimal eigenvalue.

Lemma 4.2 Let E and F be SPD matrices. Then, the extremal eigenvalues of the matrix $E^{-1/4}F^{1/2}E^{-1/4}$ are the square root of the extremal eigenvalues of the matrix $E^{-1/2}FE^{-1/2}$.

Proof Consider the largest eigenvalue denoted by $\lambda_M(M)$ for any matrix M. Let E and F be any symmetric positive definite matrices. Let us define $L := F^{1/2}E^{-1/2}$. We have

$$\lambda_M(L^T L) = \lambda_M(E^{-1/2} F E^{-1/2}) = \lambda_M(E^{1/2} F^{-1/2})^2$$

Since $F^{1/2}E^{-1/2} = E^{1/4}(E^{-1/4}F^{1/2}E^{-1/4})E^{-1/4}$, we have

$$\lambda_M(F^{1/2}E^{-1/2}) = \lambda_M(E^{-1/4}F^{1/2}E^{-1/4})$$

Altogether, we have

$$\lambda_M(E^{-1/4}F^{1/2}E^{-1/4}) = \lambda_M(E^{-1/2}FE^{-1/2})^{1/2}$$

The smallest eigenvalue is treated in the same manner.

Corrollary 4.1 Let F be a SPD matrix, then

$$\kappa(diag(F)^{-1/4}F^{1/2}diag(F)^{-1/4}) \leq \sqrt{m} \cdot \min_{D \in \mathcal{D}} \kappa(D^{-1/2}F^{1/2}D^{-1/2})$$

where $\mathcal{D} = \{ positive \ definite \ diagonal \ matrices \} and m \ is the maximum number of nonzeros in any row of F.$

Proof The proof follows from Theorem 4.2 and Lemma 4.2.

The proof of theorem 4.1 is now easy. Indeed, by applying successively Lemma 3.2, Lemma 4.2, Theorem 4.2, and again Lemma 4.2 and Lemma 3.2 we have $\kappa(Sub(\Lambda_{ap}^{q-opt}))$

 $\begin{aligned} &= \kappa ((\Lambda_{ap}^{q-opt})^{-1}\Lambda)^{1/2} \\ &= \kappa (diag(A)^{-1/2}Adiag(A)^{-1/2})^{-1/4} \\ &\leq m^{1/4} \min_{D \in \mathcal{D}} \kappa (D^{-1/2}A D^{-1/2})^{1/4} \\ &= m^{1/4} \min_{D \in \mathcal{D}} \kappa (D^{-1/2}\Lambda D^{-1/2})^{1/2} \\ &= m^{1/4} \min_{D \in \mathcal{D}} \kappa (Sub(D)) \end{aligned}$

The estimate on the condition number follows in the same way.

5 Two parameters interface condition

In the previous section, the interface condition is a Robin interface condition which reads for domain Ω_1 :

$$C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \beta_{opt} C^{1/2} D C^{1/2}$$

where and $D = diag(A)^{1/2}$, see (10). In this section, we want to design more efficient interface conditions by considering more general interface conditions than Robin interface conditions.

Inspired by Higdon's trick for absorbing boundary conditions [20] (see also [15]), we first consider an interface condition of the form

$$\mathcal{Q} := (C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \beta_1 C^{1/2} D C^{1/2}) (C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \beta_2 C^{1/2} D C^{1/2})$$

for some positive parameters β_1, β_2 and D is an invertible matrix not necessarily equal to $diag(A)^{1/2}$. This product yields a second order derivative w.r.t x the normal tangential direction:

$$\mathcal{Q} := C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} (C\frac{\partial}{\partial x}) + (\beta_1 + \beta_2) C^{1/2} D C^{1/2} C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \beta_1 \beta_2 C^{1/2} D C D C^{1/2}$$

By using the operator \mathcal{L}_h this second order can be replaced by

so that condition \mathcal{Q} is equivalent to

$$\mathcal{Q} := CB + (\beta_1 + \beta_2)C^{1/2}DC^{1/2}C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \beta_1\beta_2C^{1/2}DCDC^{1/2}.$$

We still have to write this condition in the form

$$C\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda_{ap,2}$$

for some operator $\Lambda_{ap,2}$. Since interface conditions are equivalent up to the left composition with any invertible operator acting along the interface, we obtain an equivalent condition \mathcal{R} by left multiplying \mathcal{Q} by the inverse of $(\beta_1 + \beta_2)C^{1/2}DC^{1/2}$:

$$\mathcal{R} := C \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + C^{1/2} \frac{D^{-1}A + \beta_1 \beta_2 D}{\beta_1 + \beta_2} C^{1/2}$$
(12)

In other words, we choose to approximate Λ by

$$\Lambda_{ap,\beta_1,\beta_2} := C^{1/2} \frac{D^{-1}A + \beta_1 \beta_2 D}{\beta_1 + \beta_2} C^{1/2}$$
(13)

with $\beta_1,\beta_2>0$. Let us notice that

- 1. If $D = diag(A)^{1/2}$, $D^{-1/2}AD^{-1/2}$ is another approximation to $A^{1/2}$ that is consistant with approximating $A^{1/2}$ by D. Indeed, from $D \simeq A^{1/2}$, we have $D^2 \simeq A$, i.e. $D \simeq D^{-1/2}AD^{-1/2}$, but $A^{1/2} \simeq D$
- 2. The form (13) is preferred to the simpler form

$$C^{1/2}(\beta D^{-1}A + \delta D)C^{1/2}$$

because definition (13) makes optimization easier.

3. If D is any diagonal operator then operators D and $D^{-1/2}AD^{-1/2}$ are linearly independent. Indeed, suppose there exists $a \in \mathbb{R}$ such that

$$D^{-1/2}AD^{-1/2} = a\,D$$

then $A = aD^2$. But A is not a diagonal operator.

4. The matrix A may be seen as a discretization matrix of a second order partial differential operator in the tangential directions to the interface. It is thus related to the optimized of order two interface conditions [21], [1].

As in § 4, we have to find the best parameters β_1, β_2 in (13).

Theorem 5.1 Suppose matrices D and $A^{1/2}$ commute. Let $\lambda_m := \lambda_{min}(D^{-1}A^{1/2})$ and $\lambda_M := \lambda_{max}(D^{-1}A^{1/2})$. The choice

$$\beta_{1,opt}\beta_{2,opt} = \lambda_m \,\lambda_M \tag{14}$$

$$\beta_{1,opt} + \beta_{2,opt} = \left(\min_{\lambda \in Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})} \left(\lambda + \frac{\lambda_m \lambda_M}{\lambda}\right) \left(\lambda_m + \lambda_M\right)\right)^{-1/2}$$
(15)

is optimal in the sense that:

$$\min_{\beta_1 \in \mathbb{R}^+, \beta_2 \in \mathbb{R}^+} \kappa(Sub(\Lambda_{ap,\beta_1,\beta_2})) = \kappa(Sub(\Lambda_{ap,\beta_{1,opt},\beta_{2,opt}}))$$

We have a bound on the condition number

$$\kappa(Sub(\Lambda_{ap,\beta_{1,opt},\beta_{2,opt}})) \leq \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left(\sqrt{\frac{\lambda_M}{\lambda_m}} + \sqrt{\frac{\lambda_m}{\lambda_M}} \right)^{1/2}$$

Remark 1 The spectrum of the matrix $D^{-1}A^{1/2}$ is discrete. If it is replaced in the above optimization problem by the segment $[\lambda_m, \lambda_M]$, it can be shown, see [15], that it can be reduced to the optimization solved by Wachspress for ADI methods [37] and whose solution is the same than in theorem with $Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})$ replaced by $[\lambda_m, \lambda_M]$.

Proof By Lemma 3.2, we have to minimize

$$\kappa(\Lambda_{ap,\beta_1,\beta_2}^{-1}\Lambda) = \kappa(\Lambda_{ap,\beta_1,\beta_2}\Lambda^{-1})$$

Since D and $A^{1/2}$ are supposed to commute, all powers of each of these matrices commute. Therefore, we have

$$\Lambda^{-1}\Lambda_{ap,\beta_1,\beta_2} = C^{-1/2} \frac{D^{-1}A^{1/2} + \beta_1\beta_2 DA^{-1/2}}{\beta_1 + \beta_2} C^{1/2}$$

whose condition number is independent of $\beta_1 + \beta_2$ and reads

$$\kappa(\Lambda_{ap,\beta_1,\beta_2}\Lambda^{-1}) = \frac{\max_{\lambda \in Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})} \lambda + \frac{\beta_1\beta_2}{\lambda}}{\min_{\lambda \in Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})} \lambda + \frac{\beta_1\beta_2}{\lambda}}$$

We prove

Lemma 5.1 A necessary optimality condition is that

$$\lambda_m + \frac{\beta_{1,opt}\beta_{2,opt}}{\lambda_m} = \lambda_M + \frac{\beta_{1,opt}\beta_{2,opt}}{\lambda_M}$$

or equivalently that

$$\beta_{1,opt}\beta_{2,opt} = \lambda_m \,\lambda_M$$

Proof [lemma] Suppose this is not the case, for instance that

$$\lambda_m + \frac{\beta_1 \beta_2}{\lambda_m} < \lambda_M + \frac{\beta_1 \beta_2}{\lambda_M}$$

The function $x \to x + \frac{\beta_1 \beta_2}{x}$ being convex, its maximum over $[\lambda_m, \lambda_M]$ is reached at λ_m or λ_M which belong both to $Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})$. In our case, it has to be at λ_M . The minimum of $x + \frac{\beta_1 \beta_2}{x}$ over $Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})$ is reached at some eigenvalue $y \neq \lambda_M$. Let us introduce $f : \mathbb{R}^+ \to \mathbb{R}^+$ with

$$f(\beta) = \frac{\lambda_M + \frac{\beta}{\lambda_M}}{y + \frac{\beta}{y}}$$

For small enough variations of β_1 and of β_2 , λ_M and y are still the location of the extremal values of $x + \frac{\beta_1 \beta_2}{x}$ over $Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})$ which is a discrete space. The condition number is thus given by $f(\beta_1\beta_2)$ for small enough variations of β_1 and of β_2 . Moreover, we have

$$sgn(\frac{df}{d\beta}) = sgn(1/\lambda_M(y+\frac{\beta}{y}) - 1/y(\lambda_M + \frac{\beta}{\lambda_M})) = sgn(\lambda_M^2 - y^2) > 0$$

Then, decreasing $\beta_1\beta_2$, would improve the condition number. Let us notice that we have then

$$\max_{\lambda \in Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})} \lambda + \frac{\beta_1 \beta_2}{\lambda} = \lambda_m + \lambda_M$$

Now that the optimal value for $\beta_1\beta_2$ has been found, we know the optimal approximation to Λ up to the multiplicative constant $(\beta_1 + \beta_2)^{-1}$. By applying Lemma 3.2, we have

$$(\beta_{1,opt} + \beta_{2,opt})^{-1} = \left(\min_{\lambda \in Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})} \left(\lambda + \frac{\beta_{1,opt}\beta_{2,opt}}{\lambda}\right) \left(\lambda_m + \lambda_M\right)\right)^{1/2}$$

and

$$\kappa(Sub(\Lambda_{ap,\beta_{1,opt},\beta_{2,opt}})) = \left(\frac{\lambda_m + \lambda_M}{\min\limits_{\lambda \in Sp(D^{-1}A^{1/2})}\lambda + \frac{\beta_1\beta_2}{\lambda}}\right)^{1/2}$$

The denominator depends on the repartition of the eigenvalues of $D^{-1}A^{1/2}$. It can be estimated from below since the function $x \to x + \beta_{1,opt}\beta_{2,opt}/x$ admits $2\sqrt{\lambda_m\lambda_M}$ for minimal value over $[\lambda_m, \lambda_M]$. We have thus the following bound

$$\kappa(Sub(\Lambda_{ap,\beta_{1,opt},\beta_{2,opt}})) \leq \left(\frac{\lambda_m + \lambda_M}{2\sqrt{\lambda_m\lambda_M}}\right)^{1/2} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \left(\sqrt{\frac{\lambda_M}{\lambda_m}} + \sqrt{\frac{\lambda_m}{\lambda_M}}\right)^{1/2}$$

6 Numerical results

In this section, we test various interface conditions and algorithms in the semi-continuous framework of the previous sections. More precisely, we work in 2D on the infinite tube $\Omega = \mathbb{R} \times (0, 1)$ and consider the operator

$$\mathcal{L} = -\frac{\partial}{\partial x}c(y)\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \eta(y) - \frac{\partial}{\partial y}\kappa(y)\frac{\partial}{\partial y}$$
(16)

along with Dirichlet boundary condition at the bottom and a Neumann boundary condition at the top. We use a finite volume discretization of the operator in the y direction which yields a tridiagonal matrix B of order ny. It is then possible to form the matrices of the substructured problems (9) for various interface conditions and study their spectra. We either plot the spectra or give in the tables the ratio of the largest norm of the eigenvalues of the substructured matrix over its smallest real part. We also give iteration counts (#iter in the tables) corresponding to the solving of equation (9) by a gmres algorithm [32] with a random right hand-side G. The stopping criterion is a reduction of the residual by a factor 10^{-6} . Although we don't consider a discretization in the x direction, the results are a good indication of what would happen in the corresponding fully discrete computations.

We now define more precisely the names written in the tables and corresponding to the various domain decomposition methods which have been tested: opt0, opt2, noprec, diagprec

opt0 The interface condition is the one studied in section 4.

opt2 The interface condition is given by formula (12) where $D = diag(A)^{1/2}$ and β_1 , β_2 are given by formulas (14) and

$$\beta_1 + \beta_2 = (2\sqrt{\lambda_m \lambda_M} (\lambda_m + \lambda_M))^{-1/2}$$
(17)

This last formula corresponds to formula (15) where the discrete spectrum of $D^{-1}\Lambda$ is replaced by the segment of its extremal values. Moreover, by Lemma 4.2, λ_m and λ_M are easily computed by taking the square root of the extremal eigenvalues of $diag(A)^{-1}A$. It should be noted that although matrices D and Λ do not commute in general, the computation of the parameters β_1 , β_2 is based on Theorem 5.1.

noprec The conjugate gradient is applied to the substructured system

$$\Lambda(u) = G$$

which corresponds to a Schur type method without preconditioner.

diagprec The above system is preconditioned by its diagonal.

6.1 Constant coefficients

The operator \mathcal{L} is the Laplace operator. The diagonal of the matrix Λ is constant (except for the entries corresponding to y = 0 or y = 1). Preconditioning by the diagonal is hardly efficient. Therefore iterations counts corresponding to *diagprec* and *noprec* are given in the same line.

ny			20	40	80	160
(opt0) #iter		10	13	16	20	24
	$ \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min}$	3.2	4.5	6.5	9.24	13.1
(opt2)	#iter	6	7	8	9	10
	$ \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min}$	1.4	1.7	2.0	2.4	2.88
(diag/no prec)	#iter	10	15	23	35	50
	$\lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min}$	10.2	21.0	42.7	86.4	1.74e+02

Table 1: Results for constant coefficients problems

6.2 Rapidly varying coefficients

For this series of tests, $\eta = 1.e-9$, $c = exp(-2y^2)$ and $\kappa = 5sin(2y^2)$. Except for *noprec*, iterations counts are very similar to the constant coefficient case.

	10	20	40	80	160	
(opt0)	#iter	10	12	15	18	22
	$ \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min}$	2.6	3.8	5.3	7.5	10.6
(opt2)	#iter	6	7	8	9	10
	$ \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min}$	1.2	1.4	1.6	1.9	2.3
(noprec)	#iter	10	20	34	55	82
	$\lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min}$	13.4	28.4	5.8e+01	1.2e+02	2.4e+02
(diagprec)	#iter	10	15	23	34	48
	$\lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min}$	6.5	13.3	2.6e+01	5.3e+01	1.1e+02

Table 2: Results for rapidly varying coefficients

6.3 Highly heterogeneous problems

The diffusion coefficients are highly heterogeneous: $c(y) = \kappa(y) = val([10y])$ where [] is the integer part function and *val* is the vector val=[a d a b a b a b] where a = 1.e4, b = 1.e0 and d = 1.e2. We have $\eta = 1e - 9$. Iteration counts are larger than in the previous cases.

Table 3: Results for highly heterogeneous problems

	ny	10	20	40	80	160
(opt0)	#iter	11	17	22	28	37
	$ \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min}$	6.8	31.4	48.8	71.9	1.1e+02
(opt2)	#iter	9	11	15	17	18
	$ \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min}$	1.8	3.8	4.9	5.9	7.2
(noprec)	#iter	10	22	61	136	320
	$\lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min}$	7.3e+02	1.1e+04	2.5e+04	5.3e + 04	1.1e+05
(diagprec)	#iter	7	17	27	42	64
	$\lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min}$	42.7	1.1e+03	2.4e+03	5.1e+03	1.1e+04
	(opt0) (opt2) (noprec) (diagprec)	$\begin{array}{c c} ny \\ (\text{opt0}) & \#\text{iter} \\ & \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} \\ (\text{opt2}) & \#\text{iter} \\ & \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} \\ (\text{noprec}) & \#\text{iter} \\ & \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} \\ (\text{diagprec}) & \#\text{iter} \\ & \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{ c c c }\hline ny & 10 \\ \hline (\text{opt0}) & \# \text{iter} & 11 \\ \hline (\lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} & 6.8 \\ \hline (\text{opt2}) & \# \text{iter} & 9 \\ \hline (\lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} & 1.8 \\ \hline (\text{noprec}) & \# \text{iter} & 10 \\ \hline \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} & 7.3\text{e+02} \\ \hline (\text{diagprec}) & \# \text{iter} & 7 \\ \hline \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} & 42.7 \\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{ c c c c }\hline ny & 10 & 20 \\ \hline (\text{opt0}) & \# \text{iter} & 11 & 17 \\ & & \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} & 6.8 & 31.4 \\ \hline (\text{opt2}) & \# \text{iter} & 9 & 11 \\ & & \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} & 1.8 & 3.8 \\ \hline (\text{noprec}) & \# \text{iter} & 10 & 222 \\ & & \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} & 7.3\text{e+02} & 1.1\text{e+04} \\ \hline (\text{diagprec}) & \# \text{iter} & 7 & 17 \\ & & \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} & 42.7 & 1.1\text{e+03} \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{ c c c c c } \hline ny & 10 & 20 & 40 \\ \hline (\text{opt0}) & \#\text{iter} & 11 & 17 & 222 \\ \hline \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} & 6.8 & 31.4 & 48.8 \\ \hline (\text{opt2}) & \#\text{iter} & 9 & 11 & 15 \\ \hline \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} & 1.8 & 3.8 & 4.9 \\ \hline (\text{noprec}) & \#\text{iter} & 10 & 22 & 61 \\ \hline \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} & 7.3\text{e}+02 & 1.1\text{e}+04 & 2.5\text{e}+04 \\ \hline (\text{diagprec}) & \#\text{iter} & 7 & 17 & 27 \\ \hline \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} & 42.7 & 1.1\text{e}+03 & 2.4\text{e}+03 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{ c c c c c } \hline ny & 10 & 20 & 40 & 80 \\ \hline (\text{opt0}) & \#\text{iter} & 11 & 17 & 222 & 28 \\ \hline \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} & 6.8 & 31.4 & 48.8 & 71.9 \\ \hline (\text{opt2}) & \#\text{iter} & 9 & 11 & 15 & 17 \\ \hline \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min} & 1.8 & 3.8 & 4.9 & 5.9 \\ \hline (\text{noprec}) & \#\text{iter} & 10 & 22 & 61 & 136 \\ \hline \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} & 7.3\text{e}+02 & 1.1\text{e}+04 & 2.5\text{e}+04 & 5.3\text{e}+04 \\ \hline (\text{diagprec}) & \#\text{iter} & 7 & 17 & 27 & 42 \\ \hline \lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min} & 42.7 & 1.1\text{e}+03 & 2.4\text{e}+03 & 5.1\text{e}+03 \end{array}$

6.4 Different Subdomains

In the above cases, by symmetry of the problem w.r.t. the interface, a Neumann-Neumann or FETI algorithm would give convergence in one iteration. In this section, we compare the optimized interface conditions approach developed so far to these algorithms when the operators in domains Ω_1 and Ω_2 are not the same. The model problem reads:

$$\mathcal{L}_{1,h}(u) = f \quad \text{in} \quad \Omega_1 \qquad \qquad \mathcal{L}_{2,h}(u_2) = f \quad \text{in} \quad \Omega_2 C_1 \frac{\partial u_1}{\partial x} = C_2 \frac{\partial u_2}{\partial x} \quad \text{on} \quad \Gamma \qquad \qquad u_2 = u_1 \quad \text{on} \quad \Gamma$$
(18)

where $\mathcal{L}_{i,h}$, i = 1, 2 is a finite volume discretization of

$$\mathcal{L}_{i,h} = -\frac{\partial}{\partial x}c_i(y)\frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \eta_i(y) - \frac{\partial}{\partial y}\kappa_i(y)\frac{\partial}{\partial y}$$
(19)

This problem is solved by a domain decomposition method. The additive Schwarz method is

$$\mathcal{L}_{1,h}(u_1^{n+1}) = f \quad \text{in} \quad \Omega_1$$

$$(C_1 \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda_{ap,2})(u_1^{n+1}) = (C_2 \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda_{ap,2})(u_2^n) \quad \text{on} \quad \Gamma$$

$$\mathcal{L}_h(u_2^{n+1}) = f \quad \text{in} \quad \Omega_2$$

$$(-C_2 \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda_{ap,1})(u_2^{n+1}) = (-C_2 \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \Lambda_{ap,1})(u_1^n) \quad \text{on} \quad \Gamma$$
(20)
(21)

where $\Lambda_{ap,i}$, i = 1, 2 are matrices approximating the discrete Dirichlet to Neumann map of domain Ω_i

$$\Lambda_i = C_i^{1/2} (C_i^{-1/2} B_i C_i^{-1/2})^{1/2} C_i^{1/2}$$

where B_i is the finite volume discretization matrix of

$$\mathcal{B}_i = \eta_i(y) - \frac{\partial}{\partial y}\kappa_i(y)\frac{\partial}{\partial y}$$

As explained in § 3, the ASM is a fixed point method that can be accelerated by substructuring the problem and using a Krylov method. In our case, we use the gmres algorithm.

We now define more precisely the names written in the tables and corresponding to the various domain decomposition methods which have been tested: opt0, opt2, NeumannKappa and NeumannMatKappa **opt0** and **opt2** in both cases, matrices $\Lambda_{ap,i}$, i = 1, 2 are built separately as in section 6. These approximations don't take into account the fact they are used in a domain decomposition in which now operators vary from one domain to the other. Numerical results show that for opt2 iteration counts are still good.

NeumannKappa This corresponds to a a Neumann-Neumann algorithm. The conjugate gradient algorithm is applied to the substructured problem

$$\Lambda_1 + \Lambda_2(u) = G$$

preconditioned by

$$w_1 \Lambda_1^{-1} w_1 + w_2 \Lambda_2^{-1} w_2$$

with $w_i = \frac{C_1}{C_1 + C_2}, i = 1, 2.$

NeumannMatKappa The same as above except that the weights in the preconditioner come from the discretization matrix w_i is the diagonal of the discretization matrix of the problem.

For these last two methods, one iteration consists in solving a Dirichlet and a Neumann boundary value problem in each subdomain. In the tables, we report the number of subdomain solves, one per iteration for opt0 or opt2 and two per iteration for NeumannKappa and NeumannMatKappa. In table 4, $\eta_1 = 1e + 4$, $\eta_2 = c_1 = c_2 = \kappa_1 = \kappa_2 = 1$.

ny	10	20	40	80	160	320	
(opt0)	#subdom. solves	4	5	7	9	12	15
(opt2)	#subdom. solves	2	3	3	5	6	7
(NeumannKappa)	#subdom. solves	16	20	22	22	22	22
(NeumannMatKappa)	#subdom. solves	8	10	14	20	22	22

Table 4: Results for highly heterogeneous problems

In Table 5, we consider a highly heterogeneous case: $\eta_{1,2} = 1.e - 9$, $c_1(y) = val1([10y])$ and val1 is the vector

val1=[b d b a b a b b d b] where a = 1.e4, b = 1.e0 and d = 1.e2, $\kappa_1(y) = val2([10y])$ and val2 is the vector

val2=[b a b a d a b b e b] where a = 1.e4, b = 1.e0, d = 1.e2 and e = 1.e3, $c_2(y) = val3([10y])$ and val3 is the vector val3=[a b a g b b a g a b] where a = 1.e4, b = 1.e0 and g = 1.e2 and $\kappa_2(y) = val4([10y])$ and val4 is the vector val4=[b a d a b a a a d b] where a = 1.e0, b = 1.e4 and d = 1.e2

ny		10	20	40	80	160	320
(opt0)	#subdom. solves	8	22	32	40	48	56
	$ \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min}$	1.9	25.6	43.5	65.1	94.1	$1.3e{+}2$
(opt2)	#subdom. solves	8	11	13	15	15	16
	$ \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min}$	7.6	3.6	4.6	5.7	6.8	8.2
(diagprec)	#subdom. solves	9	20	33	51	77	111
	$\lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min}$	3.5	8.5e+2	2.0e+3	$4.4e{+}3$	9.1e+3	$1.8e{+4}$
(NeumannKappa)	#subdom. solves	12	18	24	28	32	32
	$\lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min}$	22.1	31.9	35.6	40.7	47.8	59.7
(NeumannMatKappa)	#subdom. solves	10	18	24	24	24	28
	$\lambda_{max}/\lambda_{min}$	1.9	$2.2e{+}2$	3.0e+2	$4.2e{+}2$	6.2e+2	$9.6e{+2}$

Table 5: Results for highly heterogeneous problems

Iteration counts for opt0 are significantly higher than in Table 3. Whereas, the interface conditions opt2 are quite insensitive to the fact that operators are not the same in the subdomains. As expected from the theory for Neumann-Neumann or FETI method (see [26], [23] or [22] and references herein), the iteration counts are bounded from above as the mesh size goes to zero.

6.5 Playing with the parameters in the interface conditions

In this section, both subdomains have the same equations. We investigate the influence of the parameters β for interface conditions

$$C\frac{\partial}{\partial n} + \beta_0 C^{1/2} diag(A)^{1/2} C^{1/2}$$
(22)

(see 10) and for the ones of the form (12). In both cases, a key factor is the eigenvalues eigM of $M := D^{-1}A^{1/2}$ where $D = diag(A)^{1/2}$. As an example, we take ny = 40, $\eta = 0$ and

$$c(y) = \kappa(y) = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{for} & 0 \le y \le 0.3\\ 1.e + 4 & \text{for} & 0.3 \le y \le 0.6\\ 1 & \text{for} & 0.6 \le y \le 1 \end{cases}$$
(23)

The eigenvalues of M are given in Table 6

Table	6:	Eigenvalues	of	matrix	M:	eigM
Table	0.	Ligonvaruos	O1	11100117	111.	01810

5.329469058781055e-04	9.648973328110511e-02
1.385298394166431e-01	2.012580286542583e-01
2.752235067980078e-01	2.871934245780574e-01
3.983838575345311e-01	4.082391320897262e-01
4.710395757370086e-01	5.355974308332332e-01
5.874669548248144e-01	6.433877730503701e-01
6.555459008079766e-01	7.643136997314994e-01
7.665800132401215e-01	7.998197268509604 e-01
8.669683088526792e-01	9.260333944553774e-01
9.377196074715888e-01	9.577729169492986e-01
$1.040514795453881e{+}00$	1.058622660707454e+00
1.068860211792659e+00	1.117302981041904e+00
1.166314024840675e+00	1.188425463923074e+00
1.189884266810325e+00	1.253099984811212e+00
1.259385633350359e+00	1.286422394468029e+00
1.308867981151973e+00	1.333462304712622e+00
$1.354009162092570\mathrm{e}{+00}$	1.356941524921361e+00
1.384745441183732e+00	1.387174113550929e+00
1.399819704784228e+00	1.407412336023526e+00
$1.410918045589941\mathrm{e}{+00}$	1.414213461952472e+00

Applying formula (11) for interface conditions opt0, we get $\beta_{0,opt} = 2.74e - 02$. Applying formulas (14) and (17) for interface conditions opt2, we have $\beta_1 = 3.8e - 01$ and $\beta_2 = 1.9e - 03$. Other choices are possible. Indeed, looking at Table 6, we see that the eigenvalues are regularly spaced between 1.41 and 9.648e-02 except for the smallest one 5.329e - 04. This is in agreement with results on the number of very small eigenvalues of a diagonal ([17]) or of an Incomplete Choleski (IC) preconditioner ([36]) for such problems with extreme contrasts in the coefficients. It seems then of interest to use a Robin interface condition that will take into account all

the eigenvalues of M except for the smallest one. The interface condition will be better than opt0 except for the smallest eigenvalue that will be left to the Krylov method. This yields $\beta_0 = \sqrt{eigM(2)eigM(ny)} = 3.6e - 1$ in (22). This choice will be referred to as bid0. Using the two parameters approach as defined in (17), we can improve over bid0 and hopefully over opt2 by taking $\beta_1 = \beta_0$ and $\beta_2 = eigM(1) = 9.648e - 02$ in order to have a uniform approximation to Λ . This choice will be referred to as bid2. The performances are given in Table 7 and on figure 1 of the eigenvalues of the corresponding substructured problems. This figure corresponds well to the motivation for the choice of the parameter β . The eigenvalues for bid0 are close to one except for two which are close to 0 and 2 respectively. The fact that we have two (and not one) such eigenvalues correspond to the symmetry of the spectrum as stated in Lemma 3.1. The eigenvalues for bid2 are closer to one than for opt2. This does not contradict Theorem 5.1 which assumes that $A^{1/2}$ and D commute which is not the case here.

This kind of optimization is impossible using a frozen coefficients approach where a discontinuity can not be taken into account. Another way to address the problem of the few very small eigenvalues is to use deflation, see [16] or [27] in the context of domain decomposition method. The drawback is that all small eigenvalues and corresponding eigenvectors are then needed.

Interface Cond.	opt0	opt2	bid0	bid2
#iterations	28	14	18	12
$ \lambda _{max}/real(\lambda)_{min}$	51.4	5.0	$6.97e{+}2$	3.8

Table 7: Results for highly heterogeneous problems

The convergence curves of the gmres algorithm for the various interface conditions are given in figure 2. The interface condition bid0 yields a plateau in the convergence curve corresponding to the smallest eigenvalue which is not taken into account. The iteration count is better than for opt0 although the convergence of the latter is more regular. Interface conditions opt2 and bid2 perform similarly well.



Figure 1: Eigenvalues of the substructured problem for various interface conditions: star: opt0, triangle: opt2, circle: bid0, cross: bid2

7 Conclusion

We proposed a way to compute quasi optimal interface conditions for domain decomposition methods for symmetric positive definite equations. Numerical results in the two-subdomains case and at the semi-continuous level show that the approach is efficient and robust even with highly discontinuous coefficients both across and inside subdomains. Numerical tests for arbitrary decompositions and at the discrete level are necessary to fully assess the method. The extension of this work to a purely algebraic setting is in preparation. The non-symmetric case is under study.



Figure 2: Relative residual vs. iteration number for the gmres algorithm and various interface conditions

References

- Y. Achdou, C. Japhet, P. Le Tallec, F. Nataf, F. Rogier, and M. Vidrascu. Domain decomposition methods for non-symmetric problems. In Choi-Hong Lai, Petter E. Bjørstad, Mark Cross, and Olof B. Widlund, editors, *Eleventh International Conference on Domain Decomposition Methods*, pages 3–17, Bergen, 1999. Domain Decomposition Press.
- [2] I. Faille and E. Flauraud, F. Nataf, F. Schneider, and F. Willien. Optimized interface conditions for sedimentary basin modeling. In Ismael Herrera, David E. Keyes, Olof B. Widlund, and Robert Yates, editors, 13th International Conference on Domain Decomposition Meth-

ods, Lyon, 2000.

- [3] J. D. Benamou and B. Després. A domain decomposition method for the Helmholtz equation and related optimal control. J. Comp. Phys., 136:68–82, 1997.
- [4] Xiao-Chuan Cai, Mario A. Casarin, Frank W. Elliott Jr., and Olof B. Widlund. Overlapping Schwarz algorithms for solving Helmholtz's equation. In *Domain decomposition methods*, 10 (Boulder, CO, 1997), pages 391–399. Amer. Math. Soc., Providence, RI, 1998.
- [5] P. Collino, G. Delbue, P. Joly, and A. Piacentini. A new interface condition in the non-overlapping domain decomposition for the Maxwell equations Helmholtz equation and related optimal control. *Comput. Methods Appl. Mech. Engrg*, 148:195–207, 1997.
- [6] Armel de La Bourdonnaye, Charbel Farhat, Antonini Macedo, Frédéric Magoulès, and François-Xavier Roux. A non-overlapping domain decomposition method for exterior Helmholtz problems. In *Domain decomposition methods*, 10 (Boulder, CO, 1997), pages 42–66, Providence, RI, 1998. Amer. Math. Soc.
- [7] Bruno Després. Domain decomposition method and the Helmholtz problem.II. In Second International Conference on Mathematical and Numerical Aspects of Wave Propagation (Newark, DE, 1993), pages 197–206, Philadelphia, PA, 1993. SIAM.
- [8] Bruno Després, Patrick Joly, and Jean E. Roberts. A domain decomposition method for the harmonic Maxwell equations. In *Iterative methods* in linear algebra (Brussels, 1991), pages 475–484, Amsterdam, 1992. North-Holland.
- [9] Bruno Després, Patrick Joly, and Jean E. Roberts. A domain decomposition method for the harmonic Maxwell equations. In *Iterative methods* in linear algebra (Brussels, 1991), pages 475–484. North-Holland, Amsterdam, 1992.
- [10] V. Dolean, S. Lanteri, and F. Nataf. Optimized interface conditions for domain decomposition methods in fluid dynamics. *Int. J. Numer. Meth. Fluids*, 40:1539–1550,, 2002.
- [11] Bjorn Engquist and Hong-Kai Zhao. Absorbing boundary conditions for domain decomposition. Appl. Numer. Math., 27(4):341–365, 1998.

- [12] M. Gander, L. Halpern, and F. Nataf. Optimal schwarz waveform relaxation for the one dimensional wave equation. SIAM J. Num. An., 2003. to appear.
- [13] Martin J. Gander and Gene H. Golub. A non-overlapping optimized schwarz method which converges with an arbitrarily weak dependence on h. In *Fourteenth International Conference on Domain Decomposition Methods*, 2002.
- [14] Martin J. Gander, Laurence Halpern, and Frédéric Nataf. Optimized Schwarz methods. In Tony Chan, Takashi Kako, Hideo Kawarada, and Olivier Pironneau, editors, *Twelfth International Conference on Domain Decomposition Methods, Chiba, Japan*, pages 15–28, Bergen, 2001. Domain Decomposition Press.
- [15] Martin J. Gander, Frédéric Magoulès, and Frédéric Nataf. Optimized Schwarz methods without overlap for the Helmholtz equation. SIAM J. Sci. Comput., 2001. to appear.
- [16] Menno Genseberger. Domain decomposition in the Jacobi-Davidson method for eigenproblems. PhD thesis, Utrecht University, September 2001.
- [17] I.G. Graham and M.J. Hagger. Unstructured additive schwarz-cg method for elliptic problems with highly discontinuous coefficients. *SIAM J. Sci. Comp.*, 20:2041–2066, 1999.
- [18] Anne Greenbaum. Iterative methods for solving linear systems, volume 17 of Frontiers in Applied Mathematics. Society for Industrial and Applied Mathematics (SIAM), Philadelphia, PA, 1997.
- [19] Thomas Hagstrom, R. P. Tewarson, and Aron Jazcilevich. Numerical experiments on a domain decomposition algorithm for nonlinear elliptic boundary value problems. *Appl. Math. Lett.*, 1(3), 1988.
- [20] R.L. Higdon. Absorbing boundary conditions for difference approximations to the multi-dimensional wave equations. *Mathematics of Computation*, 47(176):437–459, 1986.
- [21] Caroline Japhet. Conditions aux limites artificielles et décomposition de domaine: Méthode oo2 (optimisé d'ordre 2). application à la résolution de problèmes en mécanique des fluides. Technical Report 373, CMAP (Ecole Polytechnique), 1997.

- [22] Axel Klawonn, Olof B. Widlund, and Maksymilian Dryja. Dual-Primal FETI methods for three-dimensional elliptic problems with heterogeneous coefficients. *SIAM J.Numer.Anal.*, 40, 159-179 2002.
- [23] Patrick Le Tallec. Domain decomposition methods in computational mechanics. In J. Tinsley Oden, editor, *Computational Mechanics Ad*vances, volume 1 (2), pages 121–220. North-Holland, 1994.
- [24] Pierre-Louis Lions. On the Schwarz alternating method. III: a variant for nonoverlapping subdomains. In Tony F. Chan, Roland Glowinski, Jacques Périaux, and Olof Widlund, editors, *Third International* Symposium on Domain Decomposition Methods for Partial Differential Equations, held in Houston, Texas, March 20-22, 1989, Philadelphia, PA, 1990. SIAM.
- [25] Gert Lube, Lars Mueller, and Hannes Mueller. A new non-overlapping domain decomposition method for stabilized finite element methods applied to the nonstationary Navier-Stokes equations. *Numer. Lin. Alg. Appl.*, 7:449–472, 2000.
- [26] Jan Mandel and Marian Brezina. Balancing domain decomposition for problems with large jumps in coefficients. Math. Comp., to appear, 1994.
- [27] R. Nabben and C. Vuik. A comparison of deflation and coarse grid correction applied to porous media flow. Technical Report R03-10, Delft University of Technology, 2003.
- [28] F. Nataf. Interface connections in domain decomposition methods. In Modern Methods in Scientific Computing and Applications, volume 75 of NATO Advanced Study Institute, Universit de Montréal, in the NATO Science Ser.II., 2001.
- [29] Fréderic Nataf and Francois Rogier. Factorization of the convectiondiffusion operator and the Schwarz algorithm. M³AS, 5(1):67–93, 1995.
- [30] Frédéric Nataf, Francois Rogier, and Eric de Sturler. Optimal interface conditions for domain decomposition methods. Technical Report 301, CMAP (Ecole Polytechnique), 1994.
- [31] F.X. Roux, F. Magoulès, S. Salmon, and L. Series. Optimization of interface operator based on algebraic approach. In Ismael Herrera, David E. Keyes, Olof B. Widlund, and Robert Yates, editors, 14th

International Conference on Domain Decomposition Methods, Cocoyoc, Mexico, 2002.

- [32] Y. Saad and M. H. Schultz. GMRES: A generalized minimal residual algorithm for solving nonsymmetric linear systems. SIAM J. Sci. Stat. Comp., 7:856–869, 1986.
- [33] Kian H. Tan and Mart J. A. Borsboom. On generalized Schwarz coupling applied to advection-dominated problems. In David E. Keyes and Jinchao Xu, editors, Seventh International Conference of Domain Decomposition Methods in Scientific and Engineering Computing, pages 125–130. AMS, 1994. Held at Penn State University, October 27-30, 1993.
- [34] Wei Pai Tang. Generalized Schwarz splittings. SIAM J. Sci. Stat. Comp., 13(2):573–595, 1992.
- [35] Abraham van der Sluis. Condition numbers and equilibration matrices. Numer. Math., 14:14–23, 1969.
- [36] C. Vuik, A. Segal, and J. A. Meijerink. An efficient preconditioned cg method for the solution of a class of layered problems with extreme contrasts in the coefficients. J. Comput. Phys., 152:385–403, 1999.
- [37] Eugene L. Wachspress. Optimum alternating-direction-implicit iteration parameters for a model problem. J. Soc. Indust. Appl. Math., 10:339–350, 1962.
- [38] Françoise Willien, Isabelle Faille, Frédéric Nataf, and Frédéric Schneider. Domain decomposition methods for fluid flow in porous medium. In 6th European Conference on the Mathematics of Oil Recovery, September 1998.